

**FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS
NOTICE OF PROPOSED REGULATION AMENDMENT**

DATE: August 13, 2008

REGULATION TITLE AND NUMBER: Fees, Fines and Penalties - 7.003

SUMMARY: Regulation 7.003 requires the Board of Governors to authorize all fees assessed to students unless specifically noted otherwise. The fee terminology has been updated and clarified to capture current practice and changes in law since 2001.

FULL TEXT OF THE REGULATION: The full text of the proposed regulation for amendment is posted on Board of Governor's Web site at www.flbog.edu

7.003 ~~Special~~ Fees, Fines and Penalties.

(1) The Board of Governors must authorize all fees assessed to students. Accordingly, the specific fees listed in this section, and the tuition and associated fees defined in ~~Rule-Regulation 6C-~~7.001, are the only fees that may be charged for fundable credit hours without the specific approval of the Board, except as authorized in ~~Rule-Regulation 6C-~~8.002. For purposes of clarification, the term "at cost" or "cost" as used in this ~~rule-regulation~~ includes those increased costs that are directly related to the delivery of the goods, ~~or~~ services, or programs.

(24) Audit Registration Fees -- Audit registration assures a course space for the student; however, no grade is awarded. This fee is the same as the ~~resident-tuition~~ and associated fees provided in ~~Regulation 6C-~~7.001. ~~Depositing Budgeting~~ of fee proceeds shall be the same as that provided for tuition.

(32) Registration of Zero Hours -- Such registration provides for examinations, graduations, use of facilities, etc., when deemed appropriate by the institution. The student is assessed ~~resident~~ tuition and associated fees for one credit hour. The Zero Credit Fee shall be budgeted ~~distributed~~ in the same manner as tuition.

(43) Application Fee -- Individuals who make application for admission to universities within the State University System shall pay a non-refundable Application Fee of not more than \$30.00~~\$20.00~~. The fee shall be budgeted in ~~remitted to the appropriated~~ Student and Other Fee Trust Funds. Provisions may be made to waive the application fee as specified by the university. This fee may be waived for applicants who can document that they have received a fee waiver because of economic need as determined by the College Board or the American College Testing Program.

(54) Late Registration Fee -- Universities shall assess a Late Registration Fee to against students who fail to ~~initiate~~ registration before the end of ~~in~~ the regular registration period. This fee may also be assessed to students reinstated after their course schedules were cancelled due to non-payment of fees. The fee shall be not less than \$50 nor more than \$100 with a minimum of 50 percent ~~budgeted remitted to the appropriated~~ Student and Other Fee Trust Funds and the balance 50 percent budgeted in an Auxiliary Trust Fund~~retained by the university~~. Provisions may be made to waive the Late Registration Fee as specified by the university.

(65) Late Payment Fee -- Universities may assess a Late Payment Fee to students who fail to pay, or make appropriate arrangements for payment (installment payment, deferment, or third-party billing), of tuition and associated fees by the deadline set by each university, ~~which shall be no later than the end of the second week of classes~~. The fee shall be not less than \$50 nor more than \$100 with a minimum of 50 percent budgeted to the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund and the balance 50 percent budgeted in an Auxiliary Trust Fund~~retained by~~

| ~~the university~~. Provisions may be made to waive the Late Payment Fee ~~for minor~~

|

take effect only after approval by the university president, after consultation with the student body president, and approval by the university board of trustees. An increase in the athletic fee may occur only once each fiscal year and must be implemented beginning with the fall term. The university president shall submit requests to change the Athletic Fee, to be effective the following Fall semester, to the Board for approval at its first meeting of the calendar year.

~~next fiscal year. The university president shall submit requests to change the Activity and Service Fee, to be effective the following Fall semester, to the Board for approval at its first meeting of the calendar year.~~

~~(8) Technology Fee – Each university board of trustees may establish a technology fee to be paid by all students. The fee may be up to 5 percent of the tuition charged per credit hour. The revenue from this fee shall be used to enhance instructional technology resources for students and faculty. The revenue and expenditures shall be budgeted in the Local Fund budget entity as prescribed by the Board of Governors’ General Office.~~

~~(28) The Board may authorize additional fees in order to meet specific higher education needs of the State when special circumstances result in specific, identifiable increased costs to a university. These fees will be in addition to the regular Student Credit Hour fees charged to students enrolling in these courses on campus. The additional fees charged shall be sufficient to recover all increased costs. Each university shall remit the regular Student Credit Hour fees collected for these courses to the appropriated Student Fee Trust Funds. Each university shall use the additional fees collected to cover the increased cost of these courses and reimburse the appropriate Educational and General fund, or the appropriate other fund if the costs are incurred in other than Educational and General funds.~~

~~(929) Off-Campus Educational Activities - Each university board of trustees ~~president~~ is authorized to establish fees for fundable off-campus course offerings when the location results in specific, identifiable increased costs to the university. These fees will be in addition to the regular tuition and associated Student Credit Hour fees charged to students enrolling in these courses on-campus. The additional fees charged are for the purpose of recovering the increased costs resulting from off-campus vis-à-vis on-campus offerings. As used herein, "off-campus" refers to locations other than regular state-funded main campuses, branch campuses, or centers. The university shall budget remit~~

~~Chancellor. The Chancellor shall prescribe the reporting requirements for housing rental rate increases. In the event of a dispute of the university decision, the Board shall make a final determination.~~ In addition, the university board of trustees president is authorized to establish miscellaneous housing charges for services provided by the university at the request of the students.

~~(1232) Parking Fines, Permits and Decals -- Each university board of trustees shall establish a charges for parking decals, permits and schedule of parking fines pursuant to the provisions of Section 240.264 through 240.267, Florida Statutes. Each university is authorized to establish a charge for parking decals.~~

~~(1333) Transportation Access Fee - Each university board of trustees is authorized to establish adopt by rule a transportation access fee, with appropriate input from students, to support the university's transportation infrastructure and to increase student access to transportation services.~~

~~(1434) Returned Check Fee -- Each university board of trustees shall assess a service charge as authorized by Section 832.07(1), Florida Statutes, for unpaid checks returned to the university.~~

~~(1535) Collection costs -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess a charge representing reasonable cost of collection efforts to effect payment for overdue accounts. Collection costs may be assessed to the student for collection of debts owed the university not secured by a promissory note or contract. Amounts received for collection costs shall be retained by the university.~~

~~(1636) Service Charge -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess a service charge on university loans in lieu of interest and administrative handling.~~

~~(1737) Educational Research Center for Child Development Fee -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess center shall submit a request to establish or change child care and service fees to the Board by November 1 of each year, to become effective the subsequent Fall Semester.~~

~~(18) Building Fee -- Each university board of trustees shall assess \$2.32 per credit hour per semester. No project proposed by a university which is to be funded by this fee shall be submitted to the Board of Governors for approval without prior consultation with the student government association of that university.~~

~~(19) Capital Improvement Fee -- Each university board of trustees shall assess \$2.44 per credit hour per semester. No project proposed by a university which is to be funded by this fee shall be submitted to the Board of Governors for approval without prior consultation with the student government association of that university.~~

~~(20) Student Financial Aid Fee -- Each university board of trustees is authorized to collect for financial aid purposes an amount not to exceed 5 percent of the tuition and out-of-state fee. The revenues from fees are to remain~~

at each university. A minimum of 75 percent of funds from the student financial aid fee for new financial aid awards shall be used to provide financial aid based on demonstrated financial need. Each university shall report annually to the Board of Governors on the revenue collected pursuant to this subsection, the amount carried forward, the criteria used to make awards, the amount and number of awards for each criterion, and a delineation of the distribution of such awards. The report shall include an assessment by category of the financial need of every student who receives an award, regardless of the purpose for which the award is received. Awards which are based on financial need shall be distributed in accordance with the federal methodology for determining need. An award for academic merit shall require a minimum overall grade point average of 3.0 on a 4.0 scale or the equivalent for both initial receipt of the award and renewal of the award.

(21) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess the following fees which will have varied amounts:

(a) Development Research School Fees – activity fees which shall be discretionary with each university institution.

(b) Library Fines – per book or unit, per day; ~~\$.25~~ the funds shall be budgeted to the Student Fee Trust Fund.

(c) Overdue Reserve Library books – per book, per library hour; ~~\$.25~~ the funds shall be budgeted to the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund.

(d) Late Equipment Fee, Physical Education – per item, per day. ~~\$.25~~

(e) Fees and fines relating to the use, late return, and loss and damage of facilities and equipment.

(f) Distance Learning Fee.

(22) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess fees to recover the costs of incidental non-academic services provided directly to individuals. This could include, but not be limited to, fees for duplicating, lost

administered by the Department of Homeland Security for F-Visa and J-Visa degree seeking students.

(24) Each university board of trustees is authorized to assess the following fees at the established amounts:

(a) Security / Access / Identification Card, Duplicate Security / Access / Identification Card, Fee Card, or Passbook:

1. Annual – cost up to \$10.00.
2. All duplicates – cost up to \$15.00

(b) Orientation Fee – up to ~~\$35.00~~ ~~\$25.00~~.

(c) Admissions Deposit ~~(budgeted in the Student Fee Trust Fund)~~ – Up to \$200. The admissions deposit shall be imposed at the time of an applicant's acceptance to the university and shall be applied toward tuition upon enrollment and budgeted in the Student and Other Fee Trust Fund. In the event the applicant does not enroll in the university, the admissions deposit shall be deposited in an auxiliary account of the university and used to expand financial assistance, scholarships, student academic and career counseling services, and admission services at the university.

(d) Transcript Fee – per item; up to ~~\$10.00~~ ~~\$5.00~~.

(e) Diploma Replacement Fee – per item; up to ~~\$10.00~~ ~~\$5.00~~.

(f) Service Charge – up to \$15.00 for the payment of tuition in installments.

~~Specific~~ Authority: